9:41: 31 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COVM TTEE
March 29, 2012
9:41 a. m

to order at 9:41 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Reggi e Joul e

Mar k Neuman

Tamm e W1 son

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

Representative Alan Austernman; Erin Harrington, Staff,
Represent ati ve Austerman
PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE
D ane Kapl an, Rasmussen  Foundati on; Candace W nkl er,
President and CEO Alaska Comunity Foundati on; Ken
Castner, The Homer Comrunity Foundati on
SUMVARY
HB 290 ESTABLI SH ENDOW ALASKA GRANT PROGRAM
HB 290 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.
House Fi nance Conmittee 1 03/29/12 9:41 A M



#hb290
HOUSE BI LL NO. 290

"An Act creating the endow Al aska grant programin the
Depar t ment of Conmer ce, Communi ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent to encourage comrunity devel opnent."

9:42:22 AM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED that CSHB 290(CRA) 27-LS1094/E
be adopted as a working docunent before the commttee.
There being NO OBJECTION it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE ALAN AUSTERVAN stated that the bill had been
crafted in an effort to create a permanent funding source
for community foundations that would earn interest which
could be recycled back into communities. The noney could be
used in a variety of nethods for the benefit of the
community. He testified that the creation of the funding
source could alleviate pressure felt by local governnents
to fund non-profit organizations. The bill would create a
challenge grant program the fund would mtch |oca
conmmunity contributions up to $25, 000.

ERI N HARRI NGTON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE AUSTERVAN expl ai ned
that the legislation wuld establish the Endow Al aska G ant
Program She detailed that a challenge grant nechanism
would be established that would allow local community
foundati ons throughout Al aska to |everage private donations
from within their communities; the noney would be matched
dollar for dollar wth state funds. The Endow Al aska
Program addressed several objectives: supporting |ong-range
community self-sufficiency, recognizing the ability of
community menbers to identify and respond to |ocal needs,
act as cat al yst for comuni ty conversation about
phi | ant hropy, enpowers Alaskans to invest in meaningful
|l ocal projects and envisions, and to take to-date state
dollars and turn them into a financial tool to yield
perpetual returns. Endow Al aska was inspired by a program
call ed Endow lowa. The |egislation envisions a relationship
between the state and the lead philanthropic entity; a
statewi de organization that receives an annual |unp sum
grant and then turns around and provi des nunerous chall enge

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/29/12 9:41 A M



grants to |ocal community foundations or comunity
affiliate funds. She noted that in the process of working
on the bill she had | earned many new terns and invited the
committee to interrupt her at any tinme for further
expl anat i on.

Ms. Harrington informed the committee that currently nost
qual ified or gani zati on to consi der as t he | ead
philanthropic entity was the Al aska Community Foundati on.
The foundation was a statew de community organi zation wth
nore than 250 managed funds and $50 nmillion in assets. She
provi ded an exanpl e using a hypothetical Kodiak Foundati on.
Hypot hetically, the state could provide through the Endow
Al aska Grant program annually, and the Al aska Community
Foundation would in turn offer the Kodiak Foundation the
opportunity to apply for grants. The Kodiak Foundation
would be responsible for raising $15,000 wthin the
comunity in order to neet the eligibility requirenent for
a match grant. The grant funds would be placed in a
permanently endowed fund, and could not be spent on an
annual basis; creating a permanent endownent. She stated
that funding limtations, but not a funding |evel, had been

witten into the bill to ensure that comunity investnent
was made in diverse regions of the state. Due to the nature
of the mtching grant, the funding Ilevel would be

constrained by the ability of the community to raise the
necessary funds.

Ms. Harrington wal ked the commttee through the bill:

Sec 44.33.150, page 1 lines 6 through 12 of the bil
establishes the Endow Alaska Gant Program in the
Depar t ment of Commer ce, Community and  Econom c
Devel opnent. It gives the departnent the power to
grant state funds to a “lead philanthropic entity” in
Al aska, to be further granted to community foundations
and conmunity affiliate organizations to build their
per manent endowed f unds.

Section 44.33.160, page 1 line 13 through page 2 |ine
9 describes the requirements for an organization to be
qualified as a “lead philanthropic entity” or a
“conmuni ty foundation” under this program

Ms. Harrington interjected that the |anguage intentionally
described an organization that mrrored the Al aska
Communi ty Foundation. She disclosed that conversations held

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/29/12 9:41 A M



with | ead philanthropic groups had reveal ed that the Al aska
Communi ty Foundati on would be best organization to execute
t he program

Ms. Harrington conti nued:

Section 44.33.170, page 2 lines 10 through page 3 |ine
5 describes factors that the [ead philanthropic entity
should consider when considering applications for
funding; and describes the comunity foundations and
community affiliate organizations that are eligible to
recei ve funding.

Ms. Harrington noted the section was intended to provide a
geographical range to assure that foundations were being
funded in the areas that would benefit nost. She
highlighted that |ine 25 of the bill stated that the
foundati ons nust match the state dollar for dollar.

Section 44.33.80, page 3 lines 6 through 13 set |limts
on the size and distribution of Endow Al aska grants
and describe the allowable adm nistrative fees for the
program

Ms. Harrington noted that the admnistrative overhead for
the Lead Philanthropic Entity (LPE) would not exceed
$25,000 annually and only 5 percent of the grant funds
received by the LPE could be wused for admnistrative
pur poses.

Section 44.33.190, page 3 lines 14 through 16 provides
statutory definitions.

V5. Harrington described the differences between a
community foundation and a conmunity foundation affiliate

Community foundations were independently organized non-
profit entities working to build up an endowed fund and
provi de grants and ot her support organizations around their
service area. Community foundation affiliates were a sub-
fund within a community foundation. The affiliate retained
a local board that perforned the actual fundraising at the
| ocal |evel.

9:54: 38 AM
Vice-chair Fairclough referred to page 2, line 17, of the
bill. She understood that the opportunity to establish a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/29/12 9:41 A M



new community foundation could allow a departnment to bypass
a nunber of communities in the effort to sign up new
communities. She expressed concern that smaller comunities
would not have equal access to state funds wunder the
| egi sl ation. She wondered if communities could benefit from
the grants nore than once, and if so, she suggested that
all comunities across the region should benefit once,
before communities could apply a second tine. She noted
that an urban community could have nore opportunity than a
smal l er community to receive state doll ars.

Co-Chair Stoltze added that sone conmunities could be
better at fundraising and organi zi ng than ot hers.

Representative Neuman referred to section 2, page 2, of the
bill. He opined that not all conmmunities were equal in
fundrai sing and organi zational abilities. He wondered how a
legitimately needy rural conmunity, with | ess sophisticated
fundraising skills, could be treated equally conpared to
better organized communities.

9:59: 20 AM

Ms. Harrington responded to Vice-chair Fairclough. She
noted that the bill did not prohibit a community from
returning to obtain a subsequent grant in future years. She
pointed out that lines 17-18, regarding the opportunity to
establish new community foundations or affiliates, were
intended to nmake the bill inclusive. She asserted that the
| anguage could be altered by the commttee if the conmttee
deened it necessary.

Representative Austerman remarked that the concept behind
the bill was get Al askans involved and to spread the noney
around the entire state. The bill did not specify that a
new foundation would need to be established. He shared the
desire to see nore foundations grow in smaller comunities.
He addressed that the grant was a challenge grant to get
communities to step forward, becone involved, and take nore
responsibility in the creation of their own foundations.

Vice-chair Fairclough reiterated her —concern for the
"ranking of the applications" section in the |egislation.
She thought that if a new organization received an
automatically high ranking, already established, smaller
foundati ons that had previously applied could be unfairly

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/29/12 9:41 A M



treated. She queried the definition of "new' in the section
of the bill.

Representative Austerman agreed with Vice-chair Fairclough
He reiterated that the intent if the legislation was to
encourage the developnent of organizations across the
state. He noted that "shall" could be changed to "may" on
line 11, in order to speak to her concerns.

10: 03: 50 AM

Representative Doogan requested further clarification of
the ranking system He asked if nunber one was nore
inportant than two, nunber two nore inportant than three
and so forth.

Ms. Harrington replied that that was not the intention. She
said that the organizations would ook to the expertise of
the lead philanthropic entity when seeking paraneters and
design of the nost effective route for the communities. She
noted that due to this, state control was dimnished, but
believed that it created a bal ance of experti se.

Represent ati ve Doogan expressed that the | anguage shoul d be
redrafted to clarify that the nunbers did not indicate the
rank of comrunities by inportance.

10: 05: 43 AM

Representative Gara highlighted that the bill protected
communities and famlies. He shared a story about a famly
that had wished to create an endownent in the nane of the
deceased nother, but |acked the funds to do so. He noted
that wth the community endownents created by the bill,
they, and other famlies could add noney to the endownent
and do great things.

Ms. Harrington agreed that the bill created a financial
tool that would spin off funds that could be wused to
support priorities at the community level. It created an

opportunity for famlies to have a place to put noney to
menorialize a |oved one. She gave another exanple of a man
who left a large sum to the comunity through The Seward
Foundation. The funds helped retain the wealth generated by
its residents within the comunity.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/29/12 9:41 A M



Representative Gara added that it allowed famlies to poo
noney into a larger sum than they m ght have been able to
gi ve al one.

Representati ve Edgnon asked if "conmmunity devel opnent” was
defined in statute. Ms. Harrington replied that she did not
know.

Representati ve Aust er man referred to Representati ve
Doogan's question. He stated that the word "ranking" had
been chosen by the drafters of the bill and could be
changed to "evaluating." He reiterated that "shall" could
be replaced with "may" in the interest of clarity.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked on scandals involving severa
| arge endowrents, and voiced concern that the bill would
create highly paid adm nistrative positions.

Representative Austerman pointed out to the commttee that
there was a salary cap of 5 percent witten into the
| egi sl ation.

10: 11: 55 AM

Ms. Harrington noted that foundation work in Honer was done
on a vol unteer basis.

Co-Chair Stoltze opened invited testinony.

DI ANE KAPLAN, RASMJSSEN FOUNDATION (via teleconference)
testified that The Rasnussen Foundation, working with the
Al aska Comunity Foundation, started a program simlar to
the one in the bill. The intent was to help comunities
devel op the capacity to have an endowrent fund. She stated
that people from around the United States were brought
together with a dozen comunities in Alaska to |earn about
community foundations. She shared that the core group who
wanted to initiate a fund could turn to The Rasnussen
Foundation to provide assistance by teaching them how to
beconme good grant nakers, and learn to run the process. She
said that over $700,000 was invested over a four year
period that had generated over $4 nillion in funds. She
furthered that Bethel and Barrow had started their own
foundati ons, supported by local institutions, and taken
advant age of technical assistance and training. She offered
appl ause to Representative Austerman the |egislation. She
urged the legislature to pass the legislation and assured

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/29/12 9:41 A M



the conmttee that The Rasnussen Foundation was ready to
work with | egislature.

10: 16: 35 AM

Representative WIson queried the difference in the intent
of the proposed legislation and the mssion of The
Rasnmussen Foundati on

Ms. Kaplan replied that people were enotionally attached to
the local areas where they resided, which nade them nore
inclined to donate to conmunity foundations immediately
close to honme. She offered that residents of North Pole
m ght not want to donate to a foundation that benefited the
entirety of Fairbanks. She thought that people would want
assurances that the funds would benefit their specific
comunity. She added that 20 or nore communities could
benefit fromthis bill.

Representative WIson understood that the |egislation would
provi de notivation for comrunity fundraising.

Ms. Kaplan replied in the affirmative. She stated that, i
her experience, people were often inspired to neet the cal
of chal |l enge grants.

n
I

10:19: 41 AM

Co- Chair Thomas wondered if the program could benefit from
the Pick, dick, Gve Program

Ms. Kaplan said yes. She added that there had been
outstanding growh in community project funding that was
attributable to the Pick, dick, Gve Program

Vi ce-chair Fairclough referred to page 3 of the bill which
spoke to the 5 percent cap for admnistrative costs. She
wondered if the nunmber was realistic.

Ms. Kaplan thought that the nunber was nodest. She
highlighted that a lot of tine went into identifying the
needs of a specific comunity, fundraising and grant
writing.

Vice-chair Fairclough agreed that the admnistrative cost

nunber was |ow. She shared that sonme organizations accrued
adm ni strative costs between 12 and 22 percent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/29/12 9:41 A M



Co- Chair Thonmas spoke of critical remarks that he had read
on the Pick, dick, Gve Facebook page concerning wasting
the public's noney on high salaries for non-profit
adm ni strators.

10: 23: 06 AM

CANDACE W NKLER, PRESI DENT AND CEO ALASKA COWUNI TY
FOUNDATI ON (via teleconference), testified in support of
the Ilegislation. She shared that the mssion of the
foundati on was to increase philanthropy and build comunity
t hroughout the state. She furthered that the foundation had
been working with The Rasnmussen Foundation over the |ast
four years to develop an affiliate structure and comunity
foundati ons throughout the state. She said that the concept
was a pragmatic way to incentivize and grow individual
phil anthropy and engage comunities in beneficial future
opportunities. She believed that Al askan's could relate to
the idea of a permanent endownent fund, and cited the
Al aska Permanent Fund Dividend as an exanple. She relayed
that the Alaska Community Foundation was 16 years old and

currently held $55 million in assets. The assets consisted
of over 280 different funds including: The Seward Community
Foundat i on, Pet er sbur g, Kenai, Tal keetna, The Chil kat

Val | ey, The Honmer Foundation, The Juneau Foundation, The
Arctic Slope Comunity Foundation, as well as the Al aska
Children's Trust.

Representati ve Edgnon revisited the question of whether it
was necessary that "community devel opnent” be defined by
statute.

Ms. Wnkler responded that she did not think it was
necessary. She said that the work already being done by
community organi zations defined "community devel opnent”;
groups of people from the conmunity exam ning the current
and future needs and opportunities for their respective
communities. She furthered that the groups were creating a
vision for their communities and raising the necessary
funds while nmaking determ nations of the best ways to
invest the funds. She felt that the Ilegislature should
supply a definition if one was necessary for the purpose of
di scussi on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/29/12 9:41 A M



Representative Edgnon thought that providing a definition
woul d be an additional safeguard against any potential tax
consequences.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted the admnistrative percentage
anmount s.

Ms. Wnkler relied that it was difficult to predict whether
the five percent cap was adequate. She said if the
appropriation was a large one, a $3 to $5 nillion
commtnment, the five percent cap would be sufficient. She
expressed concern about the five percent cap at |ower
appropriation nunbers.

10: 29: 07 AM

Vice-chair Fairclough queried the current admnistrative
costs for the foundation.

Ms. Wnkler replied that, because their portfolio held a
| arge endowrent, the admnistrative costs were low in
conparison to the overall asset base; approximately 1
percent. She added that overall operating costs were at 15
per cent .

Vi ce-chair Fairclough understood that the numbers included
the 280 funds under the foundations unbrell a.

Ms. Wnkler replied no. She said that the fees fromthe 280
funds were | ower than 15 percent.

KEN  CASTNER, THE HOVER COMWUNITY  FOUNDATION (via
tel econference) testified in support of the bill. He stated
that small town endowrents often arrived at a tipping
point; Homer had raised as much noney as was wanted. He
relayed the funds had been awarded in support grants to
non-profit organizations. Additionally, other charitable
grants would be distributed. He concluded that funds
handl ed by the foundation had been used to do great work in
Honer and the surrounding smaller comunities.

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony. He noted that
there were possible anendnents to be proposed as well as an
updat ed fiscal note.

HB 290 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/29/12 9:41 A M



#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10: 33 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/29/12 9:41 A M



